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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF MASSACHUSETTS

WESTERN DIVISION
CIVIL ACTION

o ACYON - pppl

ANTONIO CALVANESE,
PLAINTIFF

MARK D. AUGUSTA, Individually and in v D@

his Official Capacity as a Massachusetts A‘,'-;‘; L m .l

State Trooper, i :j S
oo M

KEITH E. PANTAZELOS, Individually and o2

in his Official Capacity as a Massachusetts COMPLAINT AND DMND E)OR A“

State Trooper, JURY TRI AL = :

John Doe 1, Individually and in his Official
Capacity as a Massachusetts State Trooper,

John Doe 2, Individually and in his Official
Capacity as a Massachusetts State Trooper,

Massachusetts State Police, Commonwealth
of Massachusetts.
DEFENDANTS

JURISDICTION

1) This is an action under the Federal Civil Rights Act, 42 U.S.C. Sections 1983 and 1988. The
Court has jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. Sections 1331 and 1343. The plaintiff further
invokes the pendent jurisdiction of this Court to consider the claims arising under state law
sounding in tort, the Massachusetts Tort Claims Act, M.G.L. Chapter 258 § 4, the
Declaration of Rights of the Massachusetts Constitution, and Massachusetts Civil Rights Act,
M.G.L. Chapter 12, Sections 11 Hand 11 1.

2) There exists between the parties an actual controversy justiciable in nature,
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PARTIES

3)

4

3)

6)

7

8)

9

The plaintiff, Antonio Calvanese, has at all times relevant to the allegations of this Compliant
been a resident of the City of Springfield, Hampden County, in the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts.

Defendant Mark Augusta, is employed as a Massachusetts State Police Officer who, at the
time of the incident which is the subject of this complaint, was believed to be assigned to the
Massachusetts State Police Barracks in Concord, County of South Middlesex, Massachusetts
(hereinafter “Trooper Augusta™).

Defendant John Doe 1, is employed as a Massachusetts State Police Officer who, at the time
of the incident which is the subject of this complaint, was believed to be assigned to the
Massachusetts State Police Barracks Troop A-3, County of South Middlesex, Massachusetts
(hereinafter “Trooper Doe 1”). John Doe 1 is described as being a white male with red hair.

Defendant John Doe 2, is employed as a Massachusetts State Police Officer who, at the time
of the incident which is the subject of this complaint, was believed to be assigned to the
Massachusetts State Police Barracks Troop A-3, County of South Middlesex, Massachusetts
(hereinafter “Trooper Doe 2). John Doe 2 is described as being a dark skinned Hispanic or
black male.

Defendant Keith Pantazelos, is employed as a Massachusetts State Police Officer who, at the
time of the incident which is the subject of this complaint, was believed to be assigned to the
Massachusetts State Police Barracks Troop A-3, County of South Middlesex, Massachusetts
(hereinafter “Trooper Pantazelos™).

Defendant Massachusetts Department of State Police, is an agency that is directed by the
Executive Office of Public Safety, and has a headquarters in Fitchberg, County,
Massachusetts (hereinafter “Department of State Police”).

STATEMENT OF FACTS

At approximately 5:55 P.M. on June 25" 2002, plaintiff, Antonio Calvanese, was traveling
on Route 16 in New Hampshire, southbound towards Massachusetts, when defendant
Trooper Augusta started to tail gate him and continued on a campaign of road rage and
harassment of the plaintiff for almost an hour as the defendant drove his truck behind the

plaintiff into Massachusetts where the Plaintiff was stopped by other troopers in marked
cruisers.

10) Defendant Trooper Pantazelos stopped Plaintiff on Rt 495 with the assistance of Trooper Doe

1, and Trooper Doe 2, who were traveling in their own cruiser.

11) Trooper Pantazelos approached the plaintiff and demanded that plaintiff give him his license

and registration. In response to plaintiffs request of the reason for the stop Trooper
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Pantazelos demanded, “give me your license and registration or you will be arrested”.

12) Plaintiff produced his documents and was then ordered out of his vehicle by Trooper
Pantezelos, at that time Trooper Augusta came to a sliding stop in his truck- just to the side
of the marked cruisers. Trooper Augusta, dressed in street cloths, rushed to the plaintiff with
his hands balled in fists and pointing his fingers in plaintiff’s face shouting, “if [ had my gun
I would have fucking shot you. I’'m a state trooper.” Then the three troopers continued to
harass plaintiff by interrogating him and illegally searching his vehicle while Trooper
Pantezelos wrote plaintiff a citation for:

a: speeding, 75 in a 65;
b: attaching improper plate; and
c: seat belt violation.

13) Defendant Trooper Augusta with the support of Trooper Doe 1 & Trooper Doe 2 continued
to question the plaintiff as to where he was coming from in New Hampshire and if he was
carrying guns or drugs. Upon hearing plaintiff’s response, “l was visiting my friends the
nuns” Trooper Augusta repeatedly shouted at the plaintiff, “you’re a Catholic child molester,
you’re one of those fucking child molesters.” All the time that Trooper Augusta shouted
profanity and humiliating religious comments plaintiff cooperated and feared that he was in
jeopardy of physical harm.

14) Plaintiff pleaded with Trooper Pantezelos to have the other troopers stop their behavior and
to have them stop from destroying his car and his personal belongings inside the car.

15) Trooper Pantezelos finished writing the citation and walked the plaintiff to his car, and then
he instructed the plaintiff to leave. The plaintiff discovered that the two other troopers had
destroyed his prescription glasses and bent his car doors, as well as emptied the contents of
his glove box, ashtray, and other possessions into the floor of his car while he was being
handled by Trooper Pantezelos.

16) Plaintiff left the incident feeling humiliated, fearful, and abused. He went directly to the

Springfield barracks to complain. At which time he discovered the internal procedures of
filing a complaint and followed up on that procedure.

17) The plaintiff, whom was already diagnosed with some mental conditions, has been to see his
therapist regarding this encounter and his conditions were aggravated by this incident. His
vehicle and glasses were both repaired at a financial loss to the Plaintiff,

18) Trooper Augusta was disciplined as a result of the plaintiff’s complaint, through the State

Police Tribunal, but it is not believed that the three other troopers involved in this incident
received any disciplinary actions regarding their involvement.

CAUSES OF ACTION
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COUNT1
VIOLATION OF 42 U.S.C. § 1983 V. ALL INDIVIDUAL DEFENDANTS

19) Plaintiff herby incorporates by reference the allegations contained in Paragraphs 1 through 18
of this Complaint, as though fully set forth herein.

20) By engaging in the conduct described above, the individual defendants’ deprived plaintiff of
clearly established and well settled constitutional rights while acting under the color of law.
Specifically, the defendants deprived the plaintiff of rights secured and guaranteed to him by
the United States Constitution including, but not limited to, his Fourth Amendment right to
be free from unlawful search and seizure of his person and his Fifth and Fourteenth
Amendment rights to due process of law.

21} Further, the wrongful acts were undertaken with reckless indifference of Plaintiff’s
constitutional rights, and include without limitation the following:

a)

b)

€)

the defendants’ conspired to make an illegal motor vehicle stop of the plaintiff following
the instructions of Trooper Augusta, then in fact stopped the Plaintiff;

the defendants’ conspired in the illegal interrogation of the plaintiff by assisting one
another in the intentional hazing, questioning, intimidating, and harassment of the
plaintiff-while Trooper Pantezelos instituted a civil violation against the plaintiff;

the defendants searched the Plaintiff’s automobile without consent, without probable
cause, and without a warrant, as well as unlawfully detaining the Plaintiff outside of his
automobile in what became an unlawful arrest for a period of time before he was
released;

each of the defendants failed to prevent the other defendant to stop their illegal activity as
required by law and by state police policy;

finally, the defendants caused property damage to the plaintiffs automobile, prescription
glasses, and other objects.

22) Each of the defendants engaged in a conspiracy to deprive the plaintiff of his rights,
privileges and immunitics as guaranteed and protected by the Constitution of the United
States in violation of the provisions of 42 U.S.C. § 1983.

23) The conspiracy included but was not limited to the illegal stop, search, detention, harassment
and failure to stop an ongoing violation of the plaintiffs civil rights.

24) As a result of the defendant’s violations of the Plaintiff’s civil rights, he suffered a loss of
freedom, property damage, and extreme emotional distress and was otherwise damaged.

COUNT II
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VIOLATION OF 42 U.S.C. § 1983 AGAINST COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS

25) Plaintiff herby incorporates by reference the allegations contained in Paragraphs 1 through 24
of this Complaint, as though fully set forth herein.

26) The Commonwealth, as an entity, through law enforcement officers at the highest level,
encouraged aided and abetted the violations of law described above.

27) Violations of law described above constituted a “policy” of the Commonwealth of
Massachusetts. In particular, but not limited to, the acts of allowing “off-duty” troopers to
engage “on duty” troopers into acting upon their request while in their off-duty status.

28) Therefore, the Commonwealth as an entity, should be liable to the plaintift per 42 U.8.C. §
1983. This count is pleaded per Fed. R. Civ. P. 11 solely to preserve appellate arguments that
the Commonwealth should be liable.

COUNT III
VIOLATION OF MASSACHUSETTS CIVIL RIGHTS ACT ALL DEFENDANTS

29) Plaintiff herby incorporates by reference the allegations contained in Paragraphs 1 through 28
of this Complaint, as though fully set forth herein.

30) By engaging in the conduct described above, including threats, intimidation and coercion, the
defendants interfered with an deprived the plaintiff of his exercise and enjoyment of his civil
rights secured under the laws of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, in violation of M.G.L.
c.12§111L

31) As a direct and proximate result of the defendants’ violations of M.G.L. ¢. 12 § 11 I, plaintiff
suffered the injuries described above.

COUNT IV
INTENTIONAL INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS AGAINS ALL DEFENDANTS

32) Plaintiff herby incorporates by reference the allegations contained in Paragraphs I through 31
of this Complaint, as though fully set forth herein.

33) The intentional and grossly reckless actions described above attributable to each defendant,
jointly and severally were outrageous and beyond the scope of common decency.

34) The intentional and or grossly reckless actions described above attributable to each
defendant, caused the plaintiff to suffer great emotional distress.

COUNT YV
NEGLIGENCE MASSACHUSSETTS TORT CLAIM
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35) Plaintiff herby incorporates by reference the allegations contained in Paragraphs 1 through 34
of this Complaint, as though fully set forth herein.

36) The defendant, Department of State Police, is liable to the plaintiff for damages pursuant to
M.G.L. c. 258 § 4.

Wherefore, Plaintiff prays that judgment be entered on his behalf, and:

1) Award appropriate compensatory damages to plaintiff Antonio Calvanese from the
defendants jointly and severally in an amount to be determined by the Court;

2) Award punitive damages to the plaintiff Antonio Calvanese from Trooper’s Augusta,
Trooper Pantezelo, Trooper Doe 1, and Trooper Doe 2, in an amount to be determined by the
court;

3) Award the plaintiff costs, interest and attorney’s fees;

4) Award such other relief as this Court deems just, equitable and appropriate.

THE PLAINIFF HEREBY DEMANDS A JURY TRIAL

Dated: February 21, 2005 Respectfully submitted,

. Chancellor
9597
116 Pleasant Street, Suite 17
Easthampton, MA 01027
Phone: (413) 527-7111

Fax: (413)527-5444
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF MASSACHUSETTS
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